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EMERGENCY MOTION FOR EXPEDITED HEARING TO REVOKE YOUTH’S  OUT-OF-STATE PLACEMENT, AND ORDER IMMEDIATE RETURN TO 

TO PREVIOUS FOSTER HOME IN CONNECTICUT

Pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 46b-121, 17a-16 and Connecticut Practice Book Section 34a-23, the child, JOHN DOE, respectfully requests this Court revoke his out-of-state placement in  Pennsylvania and order the Department of Children and Families (hereinafter "DCF") to immediately return him to the State of Connecticut and place him in his previous foster home in East Hartford near his siblings.  In support of this motion, counsel states the following:

1. JOHN is a sixteen year old youth who is committed to the Department of Children and Families.  On March 29, 1999, parental rights were terminated as to JOHN  and his two brothers, TOM and HARRY.  His permanency plan is long term foster care.
ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED

TESTIMONY MAY BE REQUIRED

2.  Since JOHN  has been in the DCF system beginning in 1995 at age 4, he has been shuffled through ten different placements in four different states over a period of twelve years.   (See attached placement chart).  Most recently, during the past year, JOHN  was living in a stable therapeutic foster home with FOSTER FAMILY  in East Hartford.  His older brother TOM is currently residing in a foster home in Wethersfield and his other brother HARRY is in a foster home in South Windsor. The brothers are each other’s only family.  

3. Unfortunately, in recent months JOHN  was victimized and bullied at school. In April, 2007, he began to exhibit more aggressive behavior and on April 27, JOHN  was taken to the emergency room at Connecticut Children’s Medical Center  (CCMC) to address his psychiatric needs. Due to the crisis regarding the availability of psychiatric hospital beds in Connecticut, JOHN  remained in the CCMC emergency department for several days, despite clinical recommendations that he be transferred to Riverview or another psychiatric  hospital.  For the four days that JOHN  waited to be transferred to an appropriate local hospital, he was confined to a room in the emergency department 24 hours a day.   

4. Because of unavailability of beds, and in contravention of JOHN ’s clinical needs that he maintain stable family ties, DCF transferred JOHN  out of state and sent him 219 miles away to the Kidspeace National Hospital in Orefield, Pennsylvania.  At the time of this transfer, DCF informed JOHN  and undersigned counsel that the out of state placement was a temporary solution and that he would return to Connecticut after a brief psychiatric hospitalization and possible short residential stay.

5.  JOHN  stabilized in the Pennsylvania hospital in a matter of a few weeks.  As a result, undersigned counsel quickly contacted Karen Andersson, Health Management Administrator, at DCF central office and Michael Williams, Area Director of the Hartford DCF office, to expedite JOHN ’s placement in the Kidspeace residential program.  JOHN  badly wanted to return home, so it was imperative that his residential treatment, if necessary, commence as soon as possible.  

6.  Unfortunately, despite the fact that no one from Pennsylvania consulted with or obtained the consent of JOHN ’s DCF social worker, JOHN  or undersigned counsel, JOHN  was transferred from the hospital to an 18-22 month residential facility.  The facility, which is part of the Pennsylvania Kidspeace program, is designed to treat sexual offenders.  Upon information and belief, JOHN ’s transfer to the two-year sexual offender program was arranged by a member of the Connecticut ASO despite the fact that JOHN  has never been adjudicated a sexual offender, was never determined to be at high risk of needing sexual offender treatment, was not recommended for such treatment by CCMC or DCF, and despite the fact that there was no agreement by JOHN  or his counsel that he needed such long term and restrictive treatment.

7.   When JOHN  and his counsel agreed for him to be temporarily transferred to Pennsylvania, it was with the clear understanding that he would be returned as soon as possible.  Instead, JOHN  was abruptly moved into a two year sexual offender institutional treatment program, left with little to no hope of coming home.  

8. The only family ties that JOHN  has are his two brothers, TOM and HARRY.  The bond between the three brothers is very strong.  In fact, they are JOHN 's only family.  His parental rights are terminated and he has no other family resources to ever visit or call him. JOHN  and his brothers have always stayed close, constantly contacting each other through visits and telephone calls.  JOHN  visited with his TOM and HARRY  every two weeks for years until JOHN  was suddenly moved to Pennsylvania.

9.  JOHN  has told undersigned counsel on numerous occasions that he does not feel safe in his present placement.  He has indicated to counsel that he has been inappropriately touched by another boy in the facility on numerous occasions and his request for a room change has not been granted by the facility.   He has also been physically assaulted by another youth in the facility.  JOHN  feels that staff continually yell at him, and do not honor his right to take time out or to talk to him when he is having difficulty.  When JOHN  indicated he was homesick recently, staff told him he couldn’t talk to anyone.  As a result, his treatment objectives are not being met at that facility, and his despair as a result of being so far from home continues to exacerbate his behavior.   JOHN ’s placement and treatment in this facility clearly violate his right not to be maltreated by out of home caregivers entrusted to keep him safe.  See Juan F. Outcome Meaure #6.      

10. JOHN ’s foster father has continued to maintain contact with him while he has been at Kidspeace and has indicated, that, with the proper supports, JOHN  can 
return to his home.  Unfortunately, because of how far away JOHN  is, Foster Father has been unable to see him.  Therefore, this “parental” bond has also been broken for JOHN .

11.  Since JOHN  has been at Kidspeace, now 7 weeks, not one person from DCF has been to see him.  Moreover, JOHN ’s current worker is “on leave” and no other worker has been assigned to his case.

12. Undersigned counsel has repeatedly contacted Karen Andersson,  and Jaime Lehane, Program Director of the Hartford DCF Office  to inform them of JOHN ’s present difficulties at the facility, to ask them to have someone from DCF visit him, to assign a new worker for him, and to transfer him back to Connecticut. They have also been informed about JOHN ’s allegations that he has been inappropriately touched while at the facility.  Despite their acknowledgement that JOHN  was inappropriately placed in a sexual offender treatment program in Pennsylvania, JOHN  remains in Pennsylvania far away from any relative contact, deteriorating on a daily basis.

13.  JOHN  has a right to family integrity that entitles him to be placed in proximity to his brothers, who are his only family since the termination of his parental rights.  See Pamela B. v. Ment, 244 Conn. 296, 313-14 (1998) (stating, in a different context, “[a]lthough a child’s physical and emotional well-being outweighs the interest in preserving the family integrity, the disruption of a child’s family environment should not be extended beyond what is unequivocally needed to safeguard and preserve the child’s best interests”).

14.   DCF Policy § 41-19-2 also expresses a strong preference for the integrity of sibling groups, stating  "[i]n a conflict between proximity of the foster home to the child's parents and keeping siblings together, the principle that siblings should be placed together takes precedence. . . ."  Id.  

15.  The Juan F. Outcome Measure #19  also indicates that youth shall be  placed out of state only when there is no less restrictive setting in state and only under extreme circumstances.  

16.  
DCF is obligated to provide an appropriate home for JOHN . The state, by virtue of its having taken JOHN  into its custody and control, must provide JOHN  with services in accordance with the reasonable judgment of treating professionals.   Here, DCF  concedes that JOHN  is in an inappropriate placement, that he should not be in a two year program in Pennsylvania, that he is not appropriate for a sexual offender program, and that he should be returned home.  DCF’s explanation for sending JOHN  to Pennsylvania in the first place was that the agency had no place else to place JOHN  in his own community.  However, such explanations cannot undermine JOHN ’s right to a placement in accordance with professional recommendations.  


17.
Finally, JOHN ’s placement in the Pennsylvania program violates his rights under Connecticut General Statute § 17a-16, which provides that “[e]ach child [in DCF care] … shall receive humane and dignified treatment at all times … consistent with his treatment plan.” (emphasis added.)  JOHN ’s treatment team does not recommend his long term placement in an out-of-state sexual offender institutional program.   


18. 
Furthermore, as stated above, JOHN ’s permanency plan recommends him for foster care placement.  Accordingly, DCF is violating its obligation under state and federal law to make all reasonable efforts to help JOHN  achieve that permanency plan.  See 45 C.F.R. § 1355.20; C.G.S. § 46b-129.  

19.
Unless JOHN  is returned forthwith to an appropriate home in Connecticut, his behavioral difficulties will continue unabated.  It is in his best interests to return him immediately to his former foster family.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, the undersigned counsel for the child respectfully requests that the out-of-state placement of "JOHN DOE be revoked and that the child be transferred immediately back to Connecticut.

Respectfully Submitted,

BY:
_________________________________

Martha Stone

Center for Children’s Advocacy, Inc.

University of Connecticut School of Law

65 Elizabeth Street

Hartford, CT   06105

Juris # 61506

(860) 570-5327

Attorney for Child

O R D E R
The above motion having come before this Court for consideration, it is hereby

ordered GRANTED/DENIED.

_________________________________

Judge, Superior Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
This is to certify that a copy of the foregoing has been mailed, postage prepaid, to Susan Pearlman, Assistant Attorney General, MacKenzie Hall, 110 Sherman Street, Hartford, CT   06105, this             day of June, 2007.

Martha Stone
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